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THEMATIC GBOurNoSoN
Gay Head Light, Gay Head

SITE DESCRIPTION: The Gay Head Light is located on the southwesternmost point
of land on the island of Martha's Vineyard, which consists of spectacular
cliffs of red colored clay, in themselves a landmark (NNHL). The light marks
the Devil's Bridge rocks, the shoals of the south shore of the island and the
entrance to Vineyard Sound from Buzzard's Bay on the route to Boston Harbor
from the South. The land slopes downhill from the cliffs and is constantly
eroding both from the action of the sea and from natural springs within the
clay soil. The site contains the town's only commercial activities, which are
local, family owned and operated souvenir shops and food service for tour
buses and autos that park in the large asphalt lot below the lighthouse on
Wampanoag Tribal common lands.
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MAICR HBEVENTS DESCRIPTION: The 1856 brick lighthouse is the only remaining
structure at the site. The original brick Keeper's House was replaced by a
wooden gambrel shingle house (1906) which was torn domn in 1961. Other Coast
Guard buildings were demolished in 1959. The brick tower 17'6" diameter,
45'8" in height, is girdled in the middle by four courses of brownstone blocks
(13" X 25") which project, forming a lower band; by a flat band; two quarter
round continuous cornice brackets and the final flat lower balcony. An iron
segmental arched door gives access to the balcony. From the balcony, an
outside iron ladder with rungs leads through a round opening onto the upper
balcony around the lens room. Almost identical to Highland Light, Truro
(#20), the lens room is glazed from floor to ceiling and is surmounted by a
standard iron roof and ventilator with lightning rod.

Door - one door to the east has been blocked up. The main door is cast
iron and has a standard cover to protect the lock from the
weather. It is set in a brick arch (37" wide) which decreases to
33 1/2" on the inner side. The brick wall is 36" deep. A wedge
of mortar at the center of the upper arch allows the bricks to be
set in such a way as to meet the reduced inner circumference. A
ground floor window is opposite this door.

INTERIOR:

Staircase - spiral, attached to a central core. The railing is wooden,
painted grey. Steps are cast iron, prefabricated with baluster
forming part of the attaching joint. There are 12 steps to the
first landing and window, 14 to the second and window, and 14 to
the third landing or lens room. At these landings a gradually
turned curve in the railings as at Highland Light. At the level
of the lamp room and lens room an unusual detail is found: a
curving wood rail on the iron instead of the usual functional

rail. An iron prefabricated ladder of 11 steps leads to the lens
room.
Windows - the three windows at the landings are the same, 2/2 panes, 19" X

20", set into simple 2 1/2" frames with wooden lintel. The brick
above forms a vertically laid lintel. The sills are 5 1/2"
deep. At Level 2 the window is set in 19" and 20" deep. Curved
sills project from these windows.

Lamp Room - the walls at this point are 25" thick. The ceiling consists of
an iron band 23" high around the perimeter. This supports an
iron disc 7'5" in diameter resting on a rim which sets 2 1/2" on
the ring. There is a window 34" X 35" within a surround 40 1/2"
wide again, a wooden board lintel with vertical bricks above. A
cast iron door 27" wide from which springs a half round arch 15"
high. It has the same lintel treatment.

First balcony-
brownstone flooring. There is a continuous railing with equally
spaced balusters. Onthe underside of the second balcony is an
opening for a stovepipe. This opening has been blocked up; the
pipe entered the lamp room over the opening from the staircase
and probably ran along the ceiling to the other end of the room.
There is also a ladder which is angled to give access to the
upper balcony.

2nd Balcony- reached as just described. There is a single rail on 16
balusters with a comb-like curbing of iron along the bottom.
There is also a handrail along the uppermost cast iron muntins of
light.
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Lens Room - As at Highland Light, there is floor-to-ceiling glazing. The
original three rows of muntins are in place. The floor is 10'6"
in diameter, with one quarter devoted to the opening from the
ladder, and is surrounded by a graceful bannister. A unique
ventilator system is intact at the base of each of the sixteen
vertical sections; all but one have been sealed. The flat
ventilator cover is 4" X 16 1/2" with a small handle in the
center and three openings of 1" X 3" on either side.
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CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY

1759 - five concentric wicks using whale oil.

1856 - First order Fresnel lens, 1008 prisms, revolving incandescent oil
vapor mantel. A 19th century account states that the light
consisted of: "4 concentric wicks of which a continual and
superabundant supply of oil is forced by a species of clockwork,
causing a flame of dazzling brilliance; is surrounded by a
revolving cover, about 8' high X 4'5" (Dukes County
Intelligencer, 8/1881 from "A Visit to Gay Head Lighthouse").

1856 - present brick, brownstone and steel tower built for $15,000
(17'6" diam., 53" circumference, 45'8" height).

Double dwelling: wood frame dwelling B (see below) quoted in
Coast Guard records. However, photos show a double building of
an earlier style at the new tower, described as follows: A)
Rectangular double brick 1 1/2 story dwelling with short attached
walkway to light at center of long side. Each side is 5 bays, 3
windows flanked by doors, 2 windows in the gable, a single dormer
facing the light, 2 chimneys. No picture of opposite facade.
Wooden covered entrance porch to dwellings. ?20,000. B) Third
dwelling, 2 1/2 story wooden frame, gambrel roof, $15,000 (32' X
76") or 28" X 55". ("32 X 76" must refer to earlier building
"A", unknown to compiler of property list). Three rooms on each
floor, shingle exterior, three chimneys, gambrel roof; 2 dwelling

units.
Oil house - brick with wooden roof. 11" X 15", $500. At edge of
cliff.

Garage - wood frame, 1 1/2 story, 20" X 25", $600.

Barn - wood frame, 16' X 31", wood shingle exterior, $1000.
(Again lists are incompatible. Photos show smaller "garage" next
to dwelling A. Photo B shows this gone and a larger barn next to

road.)

1906 - brick Keeper's House replaced by gambrel roof shingle house.
(correcting Coast Guard records above)

1947 - Coast Guard buildings constructed, 6 bays X 3 bays, 2 1/2 story
frame with 1 story additions on ends. Across road from barn.

1950 - brick lookout tower, 12' X 12" X 30' high, $16,000.

1956 - changed to untended operation.

1959 - Coast Guard building (on edge of cliff toward east) demolished.

1961 - Keeper's House razed; stable razed. Fresnel lens replaced with 2

bullseye lenses.
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LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE

Gay Head Light possesses itegrity of location, design, setting, materials and
workmanship as well as significant associations with the development of aids
to navigation in Massachusetts. Dating from 1856, the brick and sandstone
tower is the most conspicuous historic structure in the town of Gay Head. At
the time of construction, it was considered one of the ten most important
lights on the Atlantic Coast and was originally equipped with one of the first
Fresnel lenses in the country. It meets criteria A and C of the National
Register of Historic Places on the state level as well as survey criteria la,
2b, 3b, 4c.
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The Commonwealth of M assachusetts

William Francis Galvin, Secretary of the Commonwealth
March 16 1999 Massachusetts Historical Commission

Ms. Carol Shull

National Park Service

National Regigter of Historic PHlaces
Mail Stop 2280, SLite 400

1849 C Strest, NW

Washington, DC 20240

Re Town Name Change

Dear Ms. Shull:

Flease be advised that the Massachusdlts date legidature in 1998 gpproved the town of Gay Heed
(Dukes County), Massachusdits to change its name to Aquinnah.

Presently, only one Nationa Regider property islisted in that community, the Gay Heed
Lighthouse, placed onthe NR June 15, 1987 &s part of the Lighthouses of Massachusetts
Thematic Nomination. A district nomination for the Gay Head / Aquinnah Municipal Historic
District was sent to the National Regiger office within the past severd weeks and we are awaiting
word on itsdigposition. Thisnomination was sent using the town name of Aquinnah, and
reference was made to the name changein the cover |etter.

Flease change your records to reflect this change, which recognizes the community's Native

American roots.

Sincerdly,

Betsy Friedberg
National Register Director
Massachusetts Historical Commission

Enclosure - Massechusetts State Regider of Historic Flaces

220 Morrissey Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02125 <(617) 727-8470
Fax: (617) 727-5128 -TDD: 1-800-392-6090
www.state. ma.  us/sec/mhc
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National Register of Historic Places
Memo to File

Correspondence

The Correspondence consists of communications from (and possibly to) the nominating authority, notes
from the staff of the National Register of Historic Places, and/or other material the National Register of
Historic Places received associated with the property.

Correspondence may also include information from other sources, drafts of the nomination, letters of
support or objection, memorandums, and ephemera which document the efforts to recognize the
property.



WASO Form -177 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
("R" June 1984) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

Gay Head Light (Light Houses of Massachusetts TR)
Dukes County

MASSACHU Working No.
Fed. Reg. Date
Date Due
Action: _i==rACCEPT N -[>5,~-<f
resubmission eanima iM M» RETURN.
CH nomination by person or local government REJECT.
e owner objection Federal Agency: USC&.
appeal
Substantive Review: e sample * request e appeal rn NR decision

Reviewer's comments:

Recom./Criteria.
Reviewer
Discipline
Date
. see continuation sheet

Nomination returned for: .technical corrections cited below
.substantive reasons discussed below

1. Name

2. Location

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use
Public Acquisition Accessible

4. Owner of Property

5. Location of Legal Description

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Has this property been determined eligible? * vyes e no

7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

« excellent | | deteriorated ¢ unaltered e original site

« good e ruins « altered ¢ moved date.
o fair ¢ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

e summary paragraph
e completeness

e clarity
« alterations/integrity
I ldates

I I boundary selection



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

Specific dates Builder/Architect
Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

e summary paragraph A
« completeness .

e clarity

« applicable criteria

¢ justification of areas checked LLSEEE .
« relating significance to the resource

¢ context ' "ty

« relationship of integrity to significance
e justification of exception
e other

9. Major Bibliographical References

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name
UTM References

Verbal boundary description and justification

11. Form Prepared By

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

national state local
State Historic Preservation Officer signature

title date

13. Other

e Maps
¢ Photographs
e Other

Questions concerning this nomination may be directed to.

Signed— Date

Phone:

Comments for any item may be continued on an attached sheet

GPO 91 8-450
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Town/Name/Address Designation Date # Props

Andover (cont.)

Russell, Dea. Joseph House NRI ND 06/10/1982 1
28 Rocky Hill Rd NRMRA 06/10/1982 1
Shattuck Farm Locus B, CandD IR 08/30/1994 3
(19- ES-196) Exp:
Shawsheen Vil lage Historic District NRDI S 02/09/1979 294
Centered onHaverhill andYork Sts
Third Railroad Station NRI ND 06/10/1982 1
100 School St NRMRA 06/10/1982 1
Tyre Rubber Company NRDCE 09/26/1979 1
10-30 Railroad Ave NRVRA 10/07/1982 1
NRDI S 10/07/1982 1
U S Post Office - Andover Main Branch, Ol d PR 12/14/1992 1
71 Main St Exp:
Upper Shawsheen Railroad Bridge NRI ND 06/10/1982 1
Off Lupine St, near Central St NRMRA 06/10/1982 " 1
Ward, Richard A House NRI ND 06/10/1982 2
71 Lowel | St NRMRA 06/ 10/1982 2
West Parish Center Historic District NRDI S 10/07/1982 28
Lowel | St and Reservation Rd NRMRA 10/07/1982 28
West Parish Garden Cenetery Archway NRDI S 10/07/1982 1
129 Reservation Rd NRMVRA 10/07/1982 1
PR 06/07/1996 1
Exp:
Woodbridge, Ceorge B. House NRI ND 06/10/1982 2
293 Sal emSt NRMRA 06/ 10/1982 2
Aquinncdi
Gay Head Lighthouse NRTRA 06/15/1987 1
Li ght houses of Mass., Lighthouse Rd NRI ND 06/15/1987 1
Li ght houses of Massachusetts NRTRA 06/15/1987 1

Thematic Group Nom nation, 42properties i n 23
t owns
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